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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General Overview

Sparta Commercial Services, Inc. ("Sparta" "we," "us," or the "Company") is a Nevada corporation. We are a
technology company that provides a wide range of mobile app tools, products and services. We also provide vehicle
history reports and a municipal leasing program.

Our roots are in the Powersports industry and our original focus was providing consumer and municipal financing to
the powersports, recreational vehicle, and automobile industries (see Discontinued Operations). Presently, through our
subsidiary, Specialty Reports, Inc. (SRI), we offer Mobile App development, sales, marketing and support, and
Vehicle History Reports.

Our mobile application (mobile app) offerings have broadened our base beyond vehicle dealers to a wide range of
businesses including, but not limited to, restaurants, hotels, and grocery stores. We also private label our mobile app
framework to enable other businesses to offer custom apps to their customers.

Our vehicle history reports include Cyclechex (Motorcycle History Reports at www.cyclechex.com); RVchex
(Recreational Vehicle History Reports at www.rvchex.com); CarVINreport (Automobile at www.carvinreport.com)
and Truckchex (Heavy Duty Truck History Reports at www.truckchex.com). Our Vehicle History Reports are
designed for consumers, retail dealers, auction houses, insurance companies and banks/finance companies.

Sparta also administers a Municipal Leasing Program for local and/or state agencies throughout the country who are
seeking a better and more economical way to finance their essential equipment needs, including police motorcycles,
cruisers, buses, and EMS equipment. We are continuing to expand our roster of equipment manufacturers and the
types of equipment we lease.

Our offices are located at 370 Lexington Avenue, Suite 1901, New York, NY 10017, (212) 239-2666. We maintain a
website at www.spartacommercial.com.

We identify our ongoing information technology business in two reporting groups: mobile apps, and vehicle history
reports, both of which operate under our wholly owned subsidiary, Specialty Reports, Inc.

MOBILE APPS

The mobile applications group is currently marketing two mobile app products: Specialty Mobile Apps and iMobile
Apps. These products allow us to offer custom mobile apps to a wide range of customers. We also private label these
products to allow other businesses to easily offer custom mobile apps to their customers. In June, 2014 we announced
a private label version of iMA for Canadian software developer Quantech Software, Inc., who will offer the Q-App,
powered by iMobileApp, to their customer base of Retail Auto, RV, Powersports, and Marine dealers.

Specialty Mobile App and iMobileApp Products

Specialty Mobile App (SMA) products are based on a customizable modular mobile app platform developed for
powersports, automobile, recreational vehicle and marine dealers that allows them to login to our website and utilize a
fully-customized dealer mobile app on their own schedules. Dealers can upload images, change colors and icons,
customize the items displayed, and send push notifications to their customers using the app in order to create a fully
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branded experience. We generate and package the mobile application, then make it available on-line to the dealer's
customers through the Apple App Store and the Android Market. As we build new features and support more devices,
customers can take advantage of these new features and devices as well. The SMA platform also allows us to manage
licenses and retrieve reporting information.

The iMobileApp (iMA) platform is similar to the SMA platform, but designed for multi-industry use and for semi-
and fully-customized applications. Typical markets for the iMA platform are restaurants, hotels, grocery stores, liquor
stores, wineries, butcher shops, medical & dental practices, real estate agencies, attorneys, funeral homes, auto body
shops, and stand-alone event apps.

Basic features of the SMA and iMA platforms:

Mobile client framework (“MCF”) - Our mobile framework software allows us to provide customized apps that can be
installed on the individual mobile devices and deployed through the Apple App Store, Android Market Place, and
similar distribution channels.

Content Management System (CMS) - App customers can use our web-based content management system to upload
images to their mobile app, change text content, change colors, organize the order of tabs, and publish updates to the

app.
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Customized contact information - Our app customers can elect to present their users with a registration screen on
startup that collects information such as first name, last name, email address and telephone number in order to track
marketing information and push individual notification messages for future functionality.

Multiple Location Support - Our app customers pay subscription fees multiplied by the number of store locations that
they wish to include in their app. Customers can use the client customization portal to add locations to their mobile

app.

Hours of Operation - Each location covered by an app can have different time groups for hours of operation. For
example, a given store may have the parts department open during one time frame, and the sales department open
during another time frame. This information is entered by the app customer in the CMS and is displayed to the end
user.

Inventory — The inventory screen allows our app customer to specify the type of inventory they want to display and
manage. Inventory can be integrated in a number of ways: web link, hand-keyed, and in some cases through a
third-party inventory management data feed.

Quick Dial - Quick Dial is a menu option app customers can choose to make available to their users. Users tap the
Quick Dial option to get a list of phone numbers on their mobile phones. The app customer can add, remove, and edit
phone numbers that appear in the Quick Dial screen from their CMS.

Push Notifications - A direct communication channel between our app customer and their app user. This is a way for
brands to socialize directly with their very best customers, anytime, anywhere, to build a relationship at a one-to-one

level. Because users are typically with their smartphones 24/7, they are—through the push-enabled app—inviting the
business into their home and workplace. Our app customers will be virtually with their app users all the time!

Geo-fencing — Geo-fencing allows our app customers to “fence off” a specific area for their push notification, and when
their app users enter that area, they’ll automatically receive the message on their device. By setting an active period for
the push notification, our app customers can limit the time period for the message -- for instance, they can set it up so
all app users who enter the area before 5 PM tomorrow receive their push notification. This is especially useful when
businesses have deals or events they’d like to advertise to nearby users who are most likely to take advantage.

QR Code Scanner - The Quick Response (QR) two-dimensional bar code scanner enables a user to photograph a QR
symbol, then gleans its meaning and takes an appropriate action. The app customer can create QR codes from the
CMS system and specify the action that should occur when a user scans the code. Actions include displaying
information contained in the code, opening a URL, or running a vehicle history report.

Vehicle History Reports - SMA customers can allow app users to request and retrieve vehicle history reports. A user
can create an account on the device or use an existing account. The account information is sent to Specialty Reports,
Inc. to create a user account in their system. Users can add credits to their account by entering credit card information
into the device. Reports are retrieved from the appropriate Specialty Reports system (Cyclechex.com, RVchex.com or
CarVinReport.com) and displayed on users’ Smartphones or other mobile devices. Users can also use QR codes to scan
in VIN numbers that have been provided to the CMS system.

Marketing Materials - The CMS allows app customers to download stock artwork, including banners for website
display, to help promote their products and services.

Embedded Product Developer and SRI Branding - The “about” screen of the application contains information useful to
the support of the product. It also contains a powered-by-the-product-developer logo and text. SRI can choose to use a

6
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different logo, but the powered-by-the-product-developer text remains on the “about’ screen.

App store and Google Android Distribution - All native applications are deployed through the product developer’s App
store and Android Market Place online accounts.

Marketing information - If an app customer has enabled first-time user data collection then that information will be
available to the app customer on their portal.

Platforms for SMA and iMA Programs

The products have been designed (and maintained and updated by our product development team) to work as the CMS
for various smart phone platforms (now existing and potentially emerging in the future). Our products support HTML
5 and work with, but are not limited to, the following devices:

e iPhone
e iPad
¢ Android devices
e Kindle Fire
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VEHICLE HISTORY REPORTS

The vehicle history report group is currently marketing through its websites: Cyclechex Motorcycle History Reports©
(www.cyclechex.com), RVchex™ RV History Reports (www.rvchex.com), CarVinReport Car History Reports
(www.carvinreports.com) and Truckchex Heavy Duty Truck History Reports (www.truckchex.com). These reports
contain valuable information for consumers, dealers, insurers, auction houses, and lenders. The information includes a
vehicle’s history, such as disclosed damage, salvaged or rebuilt title brands, the number of previous owners, the last
recorded odometer reading, the manufacturer’s original equipment, and OEM recall data. We assemble the data for
these reports from multiple sources, including, but not limited to, governmental agencies, in order to provide the most
current information available for the benefit of all interested parties. We believe our products offer a compelling value
because they are priced modestly and we provide a no-hassle, 90-day, 100% money-back guarantee. We are confident
that our Specialty Reports provide buyers and sellers the peace of mind that comes from being able to make an
informed decision.

In June 2010, Specialty Reports entered into an exclusive five-year agreement with a U.S. government authorized
third-party distributor of on-line data from National Motor Vehicle Title System (NMVTIS) for NMVTIS data on
motorcycles, scooters, ATVs and recreational vehicles.

NMVTIS is an information system that federal law required the United States Department of Justice to establish

and to provide an electronic means to verify vehicle title, brand, and theft data among motor vehicle administrators,
law enforcement officials, prospective purchasers and insurance carriers. NMVTIS was initially authorized in the
Anti-Car Theft Act of 1992 and reauthorized by the Anti-Car Theft Improvements Act of 1996. After passage of the
1996 reauthorization, responsibility was transferred from the U.S. Department of Transportation to the U.S.
Department of Justice. The NMVTIS system is a Department of Justice program currently operated by the American
Association of Motor Vehicle Administrators (AAMVA). The system also provides a means for states to share title
information in order to prevent fraud and other crime.

NMVTIS was created to:
¢ Prevent the introduction or reintroduction of stolen motor vehicles into interstate commerce
® Protect states, consumers (both individual and commercial), and other entities from fraud
e Reduce the use of stolen vehicles for illicit purposes including funding of criminal enterprises
¢ Provide consumer protection from unsafe vehicles

NMVTIS information is supplied by state motor vehicle agency records and entire sectors (e.g., insurance, auto
recyclers/junk/salvage, etc.) addressed by the Anti-Car Theft Act. As opposed to purchasing information from specific
businesses or companies, entities are required to provide specific information to NMVTIS in a specific format.
NMVTIS is intended to serve as a reliable source of title and brand history for automobiles, motorcycles and other
vehicles. However, there are certain pieces of vehicle history data that NMVTIS’ database does not contain; for
example, a vehicle's repair history. Currently the data provided to NMVTIS by states is provided in a variety of time
frames; while some report and update NVMTIS data in real-time (as title transactions occur) others send updates less
frequently, such as once every 24 hours or within a period of days.

This information is available to consumers and dealers on Specialty Reports’ website located at
www.cyclechex.com. Cyclechex is similar to CARFAX® in that it provides on-line vehicle history reports, for a fee,
based on the vehicle’s VIN. However, neither CARFAX® nor AutoCheck® offers information on motorcycles,
scooters, ATVs or recreational vehicles.

Vehicle History Reports benefit consumers:
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Consumers can purchase reports directly from the Cyclechex, RVchex, Truckchex or CarVinReport website
Consumers can purchase reports via an Affiliate website

Vehicle History Reports benefit dealers:

Dealers can purchase a block of history reports from Cyclechex, RVchex, Truckchex or CarVinReport (with
pricingincentives to purchase a larger quantity of reports)

Reports facilitate acceptance of trade-in vehicles and add value to the purchase of any pre-owned motorcycle,
RV,automobile, light truck or heavy duty truck

Dealers can resell reports to customers

Vehicle History Reports Affiliate Program:

Dealers and other industry sources can incorporate the Cyclechex, RVchex, Truckchex or CarVinReport website
linkin their sales and marketing strategies

Affiliates earn commission on Cyclechex, RVchex, Truckchex or CarVinReport history reports generated from
theirsites
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Cyclechex Motorcycle History Reports®

Cyclechex Motorcycle History Reports (Cyclechex.com) contain valuable information for consumers, motorcycle
dealers, insurers, auction houses, and lenders including whether a pre-owned motorcycle is a specific model year,
make and model, if it has reported damage, its title history including the last recorded odometer reading, any salvage
or damaged titles, the manufacturer’s original equipment, and OEM recall data.

For consumers looking to buy a pre-owned motorcycle or a retail motorcycle dealer considering a trade-in or the
purchase of other used motorcycles, a Cyclechex Motorcycle History Report can be invaluable. And for those dealers
who want to provide a higher level of confidence to a potential buyer about the true history of the motorcycle being
considered for purchase, the Cyclechex Motorcycle History Report is an outstanding sales support tool.

Our system extracts information from multiple sources, including, but not limited to, governmental agencies, in order
to provide the most current information available for the benefit of all interested parties. With a no-hassle, 100%
money-back guarantee, and at a modest cost, a Cyclechex Motorcycle History Report provide buyers and sellers peace
of mind for decision making. This critical information is available to any interested party by entering a seventeen digit
Vehicle Identification Number (VIN), which covers vehicles dating back to 1981, on our website.

In February, 2014 we announced a reciprocal marketing agreement with Allstate insurance company that makes
Cyclechex Motorcycle History Reports a recommended tool for Allstate customers.

RVchex™ Recreational Vehicle History Reports

RV History Reports (RVchex.com) contains important and valuable information about any reported damage, salvage,
and other relevant data concerning a particular pre-owned RV. Our system extracts information from multiple data
sources, including, but not limited to, government agencies throughout the United States. RVchex.com delivers
up-to-date, accurate information to consumers, RV dealers, lenders, insurers, and other interested parties, and we offer
a no-hassle, 100% money-back guarantee. This critical information is available to any interested party by entering a
seventeen digit Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) on our website.

Truckchex Heavy Duty Truck History Reports

The Truckchex Heavy Duty Truck History Report (Truckchex.com) contains valuable information for truck drivers,
trucking companies, dealers, insurers, auction houses, and lenders, including whether a specific pre-owned
commercial truck has reported damage, recorded accidents, post-accident inspections, inspection violations, the last
recorded odometer reading, any salvage or damaged titles, the manufacturer’s original equipment, and OEM recall
data. Our system extracts information from multiple data sources, including, but not limited to, governmental agencies
throughout the United States. Truckchecks.com delivers up-to-date, accurate to consumers, truck dealers, lenders,
insurers, and other interested parties, and we offer a no-hassle, 100% money-back guarantee. This critical information
is available to any interested party by entering a seventeen digit Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) on our website.

CarVin Reports

CarVINreport.com is an online provider of Automobile History Reports. The CarVinReport Car History Report
(CarVINreport.com) contains extremely valuable information for consumers, dealers, insurers, auction houses, and
lenders, including whether a specific pre-owned automobile has Salvage or Rebuilt Title status or has sustained Flood
Damage, the last recorded odometer reading, the manufacturer's original equipment, and OEM recall data. For
consumers looking to buy a pre-owned automobile or a retail automobile dealer considering a trade-in or the purchase
of other used automobiles, a CarVinReport Car History Report can be invaluable. And for those dealers who want to

10
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provide a higher level of confidence to a potential buyer about the true condition of the automobile being considered

for purchase, the CarVinReport Car History Report is an outstanding sales support tool.

The following websites are among those affiliated with Specialty Reports Inc. used to appropriately direct customer
inquiries:

www.dmv.org

www.kbb.com
www.motorcycle-histories.com
www.motorcycleshippers.jcmotors.com
www.nadaguides.com
www.cyclepedia.com

http://www .allstateridernews.com/offers

11
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Each of our four vehicle history reports search government databases for over 90 types of vehicle title problems and
over 28 million Salvage or Loss title records. Our reports provide some, if not all, of the following information:

Crushed Vehicles

Disclosed Damage

Last Recorded Odometer Reading
Manufacturers’ Recall History
Manufacturers’ Specifications
Multi-State Searches

Rebuilt Titles

Salvage-Stolen Titles
Salvaged or Damaged Titles
VIN Decoding

Crash Data

Inspection Data

PRODUCT MARKETS
Mobile Apps
According to comScore, Inc., the smart phone and tablet market is growing rapidly:

¢ For the three-month average period ending March 2013, 234 million Americans (75% of the U.S. population) age
13 and older used mobile devices
e More than 106 million people in the U.S. (34% of the U.S. population) owned smart phones during the three
months ending in March 2013, up 9% versus December 2011
e 82 percent of time spent with mobile media happens via apps
¢ By the end of Q1 2014, m-commerce (smartphone and tablet) had grown 31% year over year with 11% ($5.9
billion) of all retail digital commerce now coming from mobile platforms

Specialty Reports, Inc’s mobile apps are offered not only in the U.S., but also in the U.K. and Germany.
Specialty Mobile Apps

According to the 2012 Motorcycle Industry Council Motorcycle Statistical Annual Report, in 2011 there were
approximately 4,925 franchised new motorcycle dealer outlets and another 4,970 independent used motorcycle dealer
outlets. There are over 17,900 franchised new car dealers selling new and used cars and over 37,000 independent used
car dealers in the U.S. Our initial thrust will be not only to the franchised dealers, but also directly to select
manufacturers such as Harley-Davidson, which has over 1,400 dealers worldwide.

iMobileApp

According to the National Restaurant Association, 2014 restaurant sales are projected to net $683.4 billion

from 990,000 locations in the U.S. According to comScore, 38 percent of adults surveyed “would be likely to utilize a
smart phone app if it was offered by a quick service restaurant ($174 billion of the projected $632 billion in sales)”.
Industries we are presently considering as candidates for direct marketing efforts include restaurants, wine and liquor
retailers, and funeral homes.

Cyclechex

12
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Specialty Reports, Inc. provides vehicle history reports to the motorcycle industry. According to the Federal Highway
Administration, there were 8.4 million registered motorcycles in the United States in 2012. The Motorcycle Industry
Council reported 2013 retail sales of new on-highway and dual motorcycles of 465,783 units (compared to 435,000 in
2012). The Motorcycle Industry Council estimates the ratio of used bike sales to new bike sales at 4.5-to-1. By
extension, sales of used on-highway and dual motorcycles in 2013 equated to approximately 2.1 million units and
averaged 1.98 million units over the last four years. With minimal competition, management believes that the
Cyclechex Motorcycle History Report® could become the gold standard for prospective purchasers of used
motorcycles.

13
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Specialty Reports, Inc. provides vehicle history reports to the recreational vehicle industry. According to the April 1,
2013, Recreation Vehicle Industry Association (RVIA) RV Business Indicators report, there are more than 9 million
RVs (motor homes, travel trailers, sport utility RVs, truck campers and folding camping trailers) on the roads in the
U.S. According to the RVIA, shipments of new RVs in 2013 were 321,110 units, up 12.3 % from 2012. The most
recent report on the used RV market was done by the University of Michigan in 2005 which concluded that
approximately two used RVs were sold for each new one. This sentiment was echoed by Scott Stropaki of Statistical
Surveys, Inc. Based on this information we can assume that approximately 642,000 used RVs were sold in 2013.

Truckchex

Specialty Reports, Inc. provides vehicle history reports to the trucking industry. According to the Americas
Commercial Transportation Research Co., LLC, State of the Industry November 2012 report, for the twelve months
ended November 2012, sales of used trucks Classes 3-8 totaled 651,000 units. Truckchex was introduced in our fourth
quarter of fiscal 2014, and while we have little-to-no competition in this space, we are still developing our marketing
strategy.

CarVINReport

Specialty Reports, Inc. provides vehicle history reports to the automobile industry. According to the CARMAX, Inc.,
December 31, 2013 10K, there were over 17,900 franchised new car dealers selling new and used cars and over
37,000 independent used car dealers in the U.S. The CARMAX 10K also reported that sales of used cars in the U.S. in
2013 totaled 39 million units, of which 22 million were less than 11 years old.

Presently, CarFax® and AutoCheck® dominate the automobile history report market. However, their individual retail
reports sell for $39.99 and $29.99 respectively compared to our $24.95 price (and $29.95 for Truckchex). We have no
intention of competing directly with these well-established companies. We do, however, plan to respond aggressively
to those dealers who might not have sufficient demand for reports to take advantage of volume discount pricing
offered by the two majors.

Used Vehicle Market Summary:

e Annual sales of used motorcycles: ~ 2.5 million units
e Annual sales of used Recreational Vehicles: ~ 640,000 units
e Annual sales of used cars: ~ 39 million units
e Annual sales of used trucks, classes 3-8: ~650,000 units

In all four markets, it is also possible that there will be more than one report purchased on the same vehicle because
more than one customer might be interested in that used vehicle. Conversely, it is possible that on any given vehicle
there will be no reports purchased.

MARKETING AND SALES

Marketing

Our marketing starts with product development. We create compelling products that; (i) in the case of Specialty
Mobile Apps and iMobileApp, provide vehicle dealerships and other businesses with a state-of-the-art mobile

application, and (ii) in the case of our four vehicle history report products, provide historical title information that

14



Edgar Filing: SPARTA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC. - Form 10-K

assists consumers in purchase decision-making and dealers, auction houses, or other entities in making a sale or
evaluating a vehicle.

Specialty Mobile Apps (SMA)

The primary marketing objective for SMA is to continue gaining market share of the vehicle dealer marketplace. We
continue to target franchised vehicle dealers by type of product and manufacturer by specifically approaching each
dealership in their dealer network to promote our SMA mobile application. By selling our mobile applications
throughout one manufacturer’s dealer network, we benefit from “word of mouth” referrals while building a recognizable
presence in that particular market. For example, a leading motorcycle manufacturer has over 1,400 authorized dealers
worldwide. By penetrating this market, we significantly improve our credibility with their entire dealer network,
resulting in the individual dealers being more receptive to our sales call, and making them more likely to purchase a
Specialty Mobile App and refer us to other dealers.

Additional marketing is done through targeted advertising as well as news stories in relevant trade publications.

15
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iMobileApp (iMA)

There are two primary areas of focus to continue gaining market share for iMA — digital marketing and targeted sales
efforts.

The digital marketing strategy is predicated on the fact that the business mobile app marketplace is emerging and
highly fragmented. In parallel, the web is not yet dominated by any one business mobile app competitor. Our strategy
is to build a strong digital web presence that will help grow our business in the short term, and establish iMA as the
market leader in web search as the industry consolidates. The cornerstone of our digital strategy is a state-of-the-art
web management platform (see www.iMobileApp.com) that is highly search engine optimized (SEO) in structure and
content. Page rank and traffic will increase over time as we support the website with traffic building efforts through
blogging, social networking, ad-clicks, remarketing, and continual technical and content optimization. The goal is to
have a leadership market share in organic and accidental search for businesses seeking mobile application solutions.

Traditional sales and marketing efforts will be employed against key categories that have an established high level of
acceptance for mobile apps and/or in which iMA has already established market share. Efforts include inside sales
calls, email campaigns, category trade association marketing, and customer referrals.

Vehicle History Reports

The vehicle categories that we are targeting - motorcycles, recreational vehicles and commercial trucks — are not the
focus of our largest competitors (CARFAX, AutoCheck). Distribution in the vehicle history reports industry is
web-based, and digital competition in our targeted categories is relatively weak and fragmented. Our digital strategy is
to become the leading search result for consumers seeking information on used powersports vehicles RV’s, and heavy
duty trucks. We employ an advanced web management platform that is highly search engine optimized (SEO). Page
rank and traffic will increase over time as we support the website with traffic building efforts through blogging, social
networking, ad-clicks, remarketing, and continual technical and content optimization.

An equally important digital strategy is our affiliate and cross-marketing programs. By working with leading
companies that serve this category — like NADAguides, DMV.org, Kelley Blue Book, and AllState — we are able to
cross-promote our powersports and RV history reporting products on their websites. Consumers who are on affiliate
or marketing partner sites can become aware of our reporting services and click through to our websites. If a purchase
is completed, the referring affiliate receives a commission on the sale or in some cases may extend a discount to their
customers.

In December, 2010, Powersports Business chose Cyclechex as one of their “Nifty 50” winners, recognizing it as one of
the top 50 new powersports products introduced during the year.

SRI has considerable opportunity to increase brand awareness and grow traffic through product development, targeted
marketing programs and strategic partnerships.

Sales and Customer Support

Our newly organized and expanded sales team for Mobile Applications work out of our New York City office, with
field reps in Colorado, Florida, New Jersey, Tennessee, Texas and Washington.

The sales team is responsible for closing sales on leads generated from web inquires, email responses, inside sales

calls and customer referrals. The team targets target businesses, trade associations, national chains, manufacturers,
vehicle dealers and vehicle auction houses.
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Customer service is based in our New York office.
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Competition

While there are numerous entities offering customized mobile apps, we believe that Specialty Mobile Apps is the
leading pre-packaged customizable mobile app for vehicle dealers at a price point significantly below other vendors of
customized apps for the vehicle dealer industry.

Because of our strong customer service and our roots in marketing we believe that our iMobileApp product can be
effectively and competitively marketed.

The two major providers of used automobile history reports, CarFax® and AutoCheck® do not provide motorcycle,
recreational vehicle or heavy duty truck history reports. In fact, CarFax states on their website that their database
contains records primarily of cars and light trucks and “for heavy trucks, RVs, or motorcycles, CARFAX recommends
checking with your DMV, enthusiast forums, and of course a pre-purchase vehicle inspection.” AutoCheck states on its
web site “AutoCheck only reports on information for cars and light trucks.” Based on our existing roster of Cyclechex
affiliates and current negotiations for additional affiliates, we do not see any company as a significant competitor at
this time. We have not identified direct competition of the RV space and do not intend to compete directly with either
CarFax® or AutoCheck®.

MUNICIPAL LEASING OF EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING POLICE MOTORCYCLES

Notwithstanding our discontinuance of consumer financing, we continue to offer, on a pass through basis, an
equipment leasing product for local and state agencies throughout the country seeking a better and more economical
way to finance their essential equipment needs, including police motorcycles and cruisers, buses and EMS equipment.
We are continuing to expand our roster of equipment manufacturers and the types of equipment we lease to agencies.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As discussed in NOTE C to the consolidated financial statements, in August 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors
approved management’s recommendation to discontinue the Company’s consumer lease and loan business segments
and the sale of all of the Company’s portfolio of RISCs, and a portion of its portfolio of leases. The sale was
consummated in that quarter. The assets and liabilities have been accounted for as discontinued operations in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets for all periods presented.

10
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The operating results related to these lines of business have been included in discontinued operations in the Company’s
consolidated statements of loss for all periods presented. The following table presents summarized operating results
for those discontinued operations.

Fiscal Year Ended
April 30, April 30,
2014 2013
Revenues $ 122,372 $ 203,997
Net loss $ (280,441) $ (880,210)

As the Company sold all of its portfolio of RISCs, and a portion of its portfolio of leases with the remaining leases in
final run-off mode (paying-off and terminating as agreed or by repossession), therefore no portfolio performance
measures were calculated for the year ending April 30, 2014 and the Company has discontinued segment reporting.

Regulation

Our prior financing operations were and are subject to regulation, supervision, and licensing under various federal,
state, and local statutes and ordinances. Additionally, the procedures that we must follow in connection with the
repossession of vehicles securing contracts are regulated by each of the states in which we do business. Accordingly,
the laws of such states, as well as applicable federal law, govern our operations. Compliance with existing laws and
regulations has not had a material adverse effect on our operations to date. Our management believes that we
maintain all requisite licenses and permits and are in material compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal
laws and regulations. We periodically review our office practices in an effort to ensure such compliance.

The following constitute certain of the federal, state, and local statutes and ordinances with which we must comply:

- Fair Debt Collection Practices Act. The Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and applicable state law counterparts
prohibit us from contacting customers during certain times and at certain places, from using certain threatening
practices and from making false implications when attempting to collect a debt.

- Truth in Lending Act. The Truth in Lending Act requires us and the dealers we do business with to make certain
disclosures to customers, including the terms of repayment, the total finance charge, and the annual percentage rate
charged on each contract.

- Consumer Leasing Act. The Consumer Leasing Act applies to any lease of consumer goods for more than four
months. The law requires the seller to disclose information such as the amount of initial payment, number of
monthly payments, total amount for fees, penalties for default, and other information before a lease is signed.

- The Consumer Credit Protection Act of 1968. The Act required creditors to state the cost of borrowing in a
common language so that the consumer can figure out what the charges are, compare costs, and shop for the best
credit deal.

- Equal Credit Opportunity Act. The Equal Credit Opportunity Act prohibits creditors from discriminating against
loan applicants on the basis of race, color, sex, age, or marital status. Pursuant to Regulation B promulgated under
the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, creditors are required to make certain disclosures regarding consumer rights and
advise consumers whose credit applications are not approved of the reasons for the rejection.
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Fair Credit Reporting Act. The Fair Credit Reporting Act requires us to provide certain information to consumers
whose credit applications are not approved on the basis of a report obtained from a consumer reporting agency.

- Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act requires us to maintain privacy with respect to certain
consumer data in our possession and to periodically communicate with consumers on privacy matters.

- Soldiers' and Sailors' Civil Relief Act. The Soldiers' and Sailor's Civil Relief Act requires us to reduce the interest
rate charged on each loan to customers who have subsequently joined, enlisted, been inducted or called to active
military duty, if requested to do so.

- Electronic Funds Transfer Act. The Electronic Funds Transfer Act prohibits us from requiring our customers to
repay a loan or other credit by electronic funds transfer ("EFT"), except in limited situations that do not apply to
us. We are also required to provide certain documentation to our customers when an EFT is initiated and to provide
certain notifications to our customers with regard to preauthorized payments.

11
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- Telephone Consumer Protection Act. The Telephone Consumer Protection Act prohibits telephone solicitation calls
to a customer's home before 8 a.m. or after 9 p.m. In addition, if we make a telephone solicitation call to a
customer's home, the representative making the call must provide his or her name, our name, and a telephone
number or address at which our representative may be contacted. The Telephone Consumer Protection Act also
requires that we maintain a record of any requests by customers not to receive future telephone solicitations, which
must be maintained for five years.

- Bankruptcy. Federal bankruptcy and related state laws may interfere with or affect our ability to recover collateral
or enforce a deficiency judgment.

- Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act. The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act authorized the creation of a Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection. The impact on the Company
of the newly-created agency is unknown at this time as the agency is yet to be formed.

Employees
As of April 30, 2014, we had 12 full-time employees.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We are subject to certain risks and uncertainties in our business operations which are described below. The risks and
uncertainties described below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known or
that are currently deemed immaterial may also impair our business operations.

We have an operating history of losses.

Through our fiscal year ended April 30, 2014, we have generated cumulative sales revenues, including discontinued
operations, of $6,419,417, have incurred significant expenses, and have sustained significant losses. Our net loss for
the year ended April 30, 2014 was $3,265,648. As of April 30, 2014, we had a deficit net worth of $3,932,164.

Our business requires additional amounts of capital and we will need to obtain additional financing in the near future.

In order to expand our business, we need raise additional capital to support our operations until we become cash flow
positive. We will have to raise approximately $1.5 million over the next twelve months to support our business. As
our business grows, we will need to seek additional financing to fund growth. There can be no assurance that we will
have sufficient capital or be able to secure credit facilities when needed. The failure to obtain additional funds, when
required, on satisfactory terms and conditions, would have a material and adverse effect on our business, operating
results and financial condition, and ultimately could result in the cessation of our business.

To the extent we raise additional capital by issuing equity securities; our stockholders may experience substantial
dilution. Also, any new equity securities may have greater rights, preferences or privileges than our existing common
stock. A material shortage of capital will require us to take drastic steps such as reducing our level of operations,
disposing of selected assets or seeking an acquisition partner. If cash is insufficient, we will not be able to continue
operations.

We are new entrants into the information technology business.

We are new entrants into the businesses of providing vehicle history reports and building mobile apps. We indirectly
compete with major, well capitalized, suppliers of automobile history reports. While these companies do not presently
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offer motorcycle or RV history reports, there is no guaranty they will not do so in the future. The mobile app building
business is characterized by many small “players”. While we believe we are better suited to market mobile apps than our
competitors, there is no assurance that we can continue to do so.

We face security risks related to our electronic processing of sensitive and confidential customer and associate data.

Given the nature of our business, we and/or our service providers collect process and retain sensitive and confidential
customer data, including credit card information. Despite our current security measures, our facilities and systems, and
those of our third-party service providers, may be vulnerable to information security breaches, acts of vandalism,
computer viruses or other similar attacks. An information security breach involving the disclosure of confidential data
could damage our reputation and our customers' willingness to shop on our websites, and subject us to possible legal
liability. In addition, we may incur material remediation costs as a result of an information security breach, including
liability for stolen customer or associate data, repairing system damage or providing credit monitoring or other
benefits to customers or associates affected by the breach.

12
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We could be harmed by data loss or other security breaches

As aresult of our services being web-based and the fact that we process and/or our service providers, store and
transmit large amounts of data, including personal information, for our customers, failure to prevent or mitigate data
loss or other security breaches, including breaches of our vendors' technology and systems, could expose us or our
customers to a risk of loss or misuse of such information, adversely affect our operating results, result in litigation or
potential liability for us and otherwise harm our business. We use third party technology and systems for a variety of
reasons, including, without limitation, encryption and authentication technology, employee email, content delivery to
customers, back-office support and other functions. Although we and our service providers have developed systems
and processes that are designed to protect customer information and prevent data loss and other security breaches,
such measures cannot provide absolute security.

Our auditor’s opinion expresses doubt about our ability to continue as a “going concern”.

The independent auditor’s report on our April 30, 2014 consolidated financial statements state that our historical losses
raise substantial doubts about our ability to continue as a going concern. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
generate revenues or maintain any line of business that might prove to be profitable. Our ability to continue as a

going concern is subject to our ability to generate a profit or obtain necessary funding from outside sources, including
obtaining additional funding from the sale of our securities, increasing sales or obtaining credit lines or loans from
various financial institutions where possible. If we are unable to develop our business, we may have to discontinue
operations or cease to exist, which would be detrimental to the value of our common stock. We can make no
assurances that our business operations will develop and provide us with significant cash to continue operations.

A significant number of customers may fail to perform under their loans or leases.

Despite the sale of our RISC portfolio, we continue to own a “run-off” (paying-off and terminating as agreed or by
repossession) portfolio of leases. As a lender or lessor, one of the largest risks we face is the possibility that a
significant number of customers will fail to pay their payments when due. If customers’ defaults cause losses in excess
of our allowance for losses, it could have an adverse effect on our business, profitability and financial condition. If a
borrower enters into bankruptcy, we may have no means of recourse. We have established an evaluation process
designed to determine the adequacy of the allowance for losses. While this evaluation process uses historical and
other objective information, the establishment of losses is dependent to a great extent on management’s experience and
judgment. We cannot assure you that our loss reserves will be sufficient to absorb future losses or prevent a material
adverse effect on our business, profitability or financial condition.

A variety of factors and economic forces may affect our operating results.

Our operating results may differ from current forecasts and projections significantly in the future as a result of a
variety of factors, many of which are outside our control. These factors include, without limitation, the receipt of
revenues, which is difficult to forecast accurately, the amount and timing of capital expenditures and other costs
relating to the expansion of our operations, the introduction of new products or services by us or our competitors,
borrowing costs, pricing changes in the industry, technical difficulties, general economic conditions and economic
conditions specific our market place. The success of an investment in a vehicle history report and mobile app based
venture is dependent, at least, in part, on extrinsic economic forces, including the supply of and demand for such
services. No assurance can be given that we will be able to generate sufficient revenue to cover our cost of doing
business. Furthermore, our revenues and results of operations will be subject to fluctuations based upon general
economic conditions. Economic factors like unemployment, interest rates, and the availability of credit generally,
municipal government and corporate budget constraints affecting equipment and technology purchases, the rate of
inflation, and consumer perceptions of the economy may affect the volume of history report purchases.
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Failure to perfect a security interest could harm our business.

Although our leasing portfolio is in a run-off mode (paying-off and terminating as agreed or by repossession), an
ownership interest or security interest in a motor vehicle registered in most states may be perfected against creditors
and subsequent purchasers without notice for valuable consideration only by complying with certain procedures
specific to the particular state. While we believe we have made all proper filings, we may not have a perfected lien or
ownership interest in all of the vehicles we have financed. We may not have a validly perfected ownership interest
and security interest, respectively, in some vehicles during the period of the loan. As a result, our ownership or
security interest in these vehicles will not be perfected and our interest could be inferior to interests of other creditors
or purchasers who have taken the steps described above. If such creditors or purchasers successfully did so, the
affected vehicles would not be available to generate their expected cash flow, which would have a material adverse
effect on our business.
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Risks associated with leasing.

Our business is subject to the risks generally associated with the ownership and leasing of vehicles. A lessee may
default in performance of its consumer lease obligations and we may be unable to enforce our remedies under a
lease. As aresult, certain of these customers may pose credit risks to us. Our inability to collect receivables due
under a lease and our inability to profitably sell or re-lease off-lease vehicles could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Adverse changes in used vehicle prices may harm our business.

Significant increases in the inventory of vehicles may depress the prices at which we can sell or lease our inventory of
used vehicles composed of off-lease and repossessed vehicles or may delay sales or leases. Factors that may affect the
level of used vehicles inventory include consumer preferences, leasing programs offered by our competitors and
seasonality. In addition, average used powersports vehicle prices have fluctuated in the past, and any softening in the
used powersports vehicle market could cause our recovery rates on repossessed vehicles to decline below current
levels. Lower recovery rates increase our credit losses and reduce the amount of cash flows we receive.

Our business is dependent on intellectual property rights and we may not be able to protect such rights successfully.

Our intellectual property, including our license agreements and other agreements, which establish our rights to
proprietary intellectual property, our Cyclechex, RVchex, CarVin, and Truckchex vehicle history reports and our
SMA and iMA mobile apps are of great value to our business operations. Infringement or misappropriation of our
intellectual property could materially harm our business. We rely on a combination of trade secret, copyright,
trademark, and other proprietary rights laws to protect our rights to this valuable intellectual property. Third parties
may try to challenge our intellectual property rights. In addition, our business is subject to the risk of third parties
infringing or circumventing our intellectual property rights. We may need to resort to litigation in the future to protect
our intellectual property rights, which could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources. Our failure to
protect our intellectual property rights could have a material adverse effect on our business and competitive position.

Our business is subject to various government regulations.

While we have sold our consumer loan portfolio, we still retain a small and declining lease portfolio. Therefore, we
are subject to numerous federal and state consumer protection laws and regulations and licensing requirements, which,
among other things, may affect: (i) the interest rates, fees and other charges we impose; (ii) the terms and conditions
of the contracts; (iii) the disclosures we must make to obligors; and (iv) the collection, repossession and foreclosure
rights with respect to delinquent obligors. The extent and nature of such laws and regulations vary from state to
state. Federal bankruptcy laws limit our ability to collect defaulted receivables from obligors who seek bankruptcy
protection. Prospective changes in any such laws or the enactment of new laws may have an adverse effect on our
business or the results of operations. Compliance with existing laws and regulations has not had a material adverse
effect on our operations to date. We will need to periodically review our office practices in an effort to ensure such
compliance, the failure of which may have a material adverse effect on our operations and our ability to conduct
business activities.

We do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock.
We have never declared or paid any cash dividend on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any future
earnings and do not expect to pay any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Future cash dividends

on the common stock, if any, will be at the discretion of our board, and will depend on our future operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual restrictions imposed by lending or
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other agreements, including agreements with holders of senior or preferential rights, and other factors that the board
may consider important.

We have authorized a class of preferred stock which may alter the rights of common stock holders by giving preferred
stock holders greater dividend rights, liquidation rights and voting rights than our common stockholders have.

Our board is empowered to issue, without stockholder approval, preferred stock, on one or more series, with dividend,
liquidation, conversion, voting or other rights that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the
holders of common stock. From time to time, we have designated, and may in the future designate, series of preferred
stock carrying various preferences and rights different from, and greater than, our common stock. As of April 30,
2014, we have two series of preferred stock outstanding. Preferred stock could be utilized, under certain
circumstances, as a method of discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in control of the company.

We are subject to various securities-related requirements as a reporting company.
We may need to improve our reporting and internal controls and procedures. We have in the past submitted reports
with the SEC after the original due date of such reports. If we fail to remain current on our reporting requirements,

our common stock could be removed from quotation from the OTC Bulletin Board, which would limit the ability to
sell our common stock.
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We are controlled by current officers, directors and principal stockholders.

Our directors and executive officers beneficially own approximately 5.34% of our common stock as of April 30,
2014. Accordingly, these persons and their respective affiliates have the ability to exert substantial control over the
election of our Board of Directors and the outcome of issues submitted to our stockholders, including approval of
mergers, sales of assets or other corporate transactions. In addition, such control could preclude any unsolicited
acquisition of our company and could affect the price of our common stock.

We are dependent on our management and the loss of any officer could hinder our implementation of our business
plan.

We are heavily dependent upon management, the loss of any one of whom could have a material adverse effect on our
ability to implement our business plan. While we have entered into employment agreement with our Chief Executive
Officer, this employment agreement could be terminated for a variety of reasons. We do not presently carry key man
insurance on the life of any employee. If, for some reason, the services of management, or of any member of
management, were no longer available to us, our operations and proposed businesses and endeavors may be materially
adversely affected. Any failure of management to implement and manage our business strategy may have a material
adverse effect on us. There can be no assurance that our operating and financial control systems will be adequate to
support our future operations. Furthermore, the inability to continue to upgrade the operating and financial control
systems, the inability to recruit and hire necessary personnel or the emergence of unexpected expansion difficulties
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our executive offices are located at 370 Lexington Avenue, Suite 1901, New York, NY 10017. We have an agreement
for use of office space at this location under a sub-lease expiring on November 29, 2014. The office space contains
approximately 3,000 square feet. For the year ended April 30, 2013, the rent was $246,632. For the year ending
April 30, 2014, the rent is $151,164 and for the remaining seven months of our sub-lease ending November 29, 2014,
the rent is $89,453. Additionally, during the term of the lease the Company is required to pay $965 monthly for
electricity. We are in current discussions to extend our lease while at the same time evaluating other office space
options.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at April 30, 2014, we were not a party to any material pending legal proceeding except as stated below. From time
to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings, which arise in the ordinary course of
business.

On December 18, 2012, a suit was filed by the Company, as plaintiff, asserting claims against a former credit provider
seeking substantial damages for the credit provider's alleged breaches of fiduciary duties it owed to the Company,
among other causes of action the Company has alleged in a Complaint filed in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York. The suit is currently in the discovery phase. There can be no assurance that the
Company will prevail on any of its claims in this action.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol "SRCO". The following table
sets forth, for the calendar periods indicated, the range of the high and low closing prices of our common stock, as
reported by the OTCBB. The quotations represent inter-dealer prices without retail mark-ups, mark-downs or
commissions, and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

High Low

Fiscal Year 2014
First quarter (May 1, 2013 — July 31,

2013) $ 0.70 $ 0.39
Second quarter (August 1, 2013 —

October 31, 2013) $ 074 $ 0.41
Third quarter (November 1, 2013 —

January 31, 2014) $ 129 $ 0.45
Fourth quarter (February 1, 2014 —

April 30, 2014) $ 132 $ 0.93

Fiscal Year 2013
First quarter (May 1, 2012 — July 31,

2012) $ 1.75 % 0.86
Second quarter (August 1, 2012 —

October 31, 2012) $ 1.30 $ 0.54
Third quarter (November 1, 2012 —

January 31, 2013) $ 075 $ 0.48
Fourth quarter (February 1, 2013 —

April 30, 2013) $ 0.62 $ 0.32

Holders

The approximate number of holders of record of our common stock as of April 30, 2014 was 3, 055 excluding
stockholders holding common stock under nominee security position listings.

Dividends

We have never declared any cash dividends on our common stock. Future cash dividends on the common stock, if
any, will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on our future operations and earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual restrictions, including any restrictions pursuant to
the terms of senior securities outstanding, and other factors that the Board of Directors may consider important. The
Board of Directors does not intend to declare or pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future. It is the current policy to
retain all earnings, if any, to support future growth and expansion.

As of April 30, 2014, we had outstanding 125 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, $.001 par value. The
Series A shares pay a 6% annual dividend which may be paid in cash or shares of common stock at our option. We
have not, as of April 30, 2014, distributed any dividends on the Series A shares, in cash or in shares of common stock.
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Upon conversion of the Series A shares, all accrued and unpaid dividends are extinguished. As of April 30, 2014,
there was $6,045 of accrued Series A dividends payable.

As of April 30, 2014, we had 157 shares of Series B preferred stock outstanding. The Series B shares accrue
dividends at an annual rate of 10%. Accrued dividends are payable upon redemption of the Series B shares. As of
April 30, 2014, no dividends were paid on Series B shares.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Each of the issuance and sale of securities described below was deemed to be exempt from registration under the
Securities Act in reliance on Section 4(2) of the Securities Act as transactions by an issuer not involving a public
offering. No advertising or general solicitation was employed in offering the securities. Each purchaser is a
sophisticated investor (as described in Rule 506(b) (2) (ii) of Regulation D) or an accredited investor (as defined in
Rule 501 of Regulation D), and each received adequate information about the Company or had access to such
information, through employment or other relationships, to such information.
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During the year ended April 30, 2014, the Company:

Sold to an accredited investor a convertible four notes in the aggregate amount of $192,000. The notes are nine month
notes and bear 8% interest. The notes are convertible at the note holder’s option at the lower of (i) the price per share at
which the Company sells or issues any shares of common, subject to certain exceptions, or (ii) 58% multiplied by the
average of the lowest three lowest closing bid price for the common stock during the ten trading day period ending

one trading day prior to the date of submission of the conversion notice. During the fiscal year, three of the notes
totaling $137,000 plus accrued interest thereon were repaid and $82,500 of notes issued during the prior fiscal year,
plus accrued interest thereon, were repaid.

Borrowed $22,000 due June 27, 2014 and $33,000 due August 21, 2014 pursuant to the terms of a 5%, $165,000
convertible note commitment. Both notes and accrued interest were converted during the fiscal year ending April 30,
2014 into a total of 80,555 shares of common stock.

Borrowed $55,000 due February 20, 2015, pursuant to the terms of a $165,000, 5% convertible note commitment.
And, borrowed another $55,000 due April 16, 2014 pursuant to the terms of a second $165,000, 5% convertible note
commitment. Both notes are identical in terms. The lender may lend additional consideration to the Company in such
amounts and at such dates as Lender may choose in its sole discretion. The principal sum due to lender shall be
prorated based on the consideration actually paid by lender (plus an approximate 10% original issue discount that is
prorated based on the consideration actually paid by the lender as well as any other interest or fees) such that the
borrower is only required to repay the amount funded and the Company is not required to repay any unfunded portion
of this note. The maturity date is one year from the effective date of each payment and is the date upon which the
Principal Sum of this Note, as well as any unpaid interest and other fees, shall be due and payable. The Conversion
Price is the lesser of $0.60 or 70% of the lowest closing prices during the 20 trading days immediately previous to the
day the conversion notice is delivered to the Company (In the case that conversion shares are not deliverable by
DWAC an additional 5% discount will apply; and if the Company fails to maintain its status as DTC Eligible, the
Principal amount of the Note shall increase by $10,000 and the conversion price shall be redefined to equal the lesser
of $0.60 or 50% of the lowest closing prices during the 25 trading days immediately previous to the day the
conversion notice is delivered to the Company. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by both parties, at no time will the
lender convert any amount of this note into common stock that would result in the lender owning more than 4.99% of
the common stock outstanding.

Borrowed $165,000 in four tranches of $27,500 each, due July 16, 2014, October 21, 2014, January 29, 2015 and
April 29, 2015, pursuant to the terms of a 5% convertible note. The principal sum due to lender shall be prorated
based on the consideration actually paid by lender (plus an approximate 10% original issue discount that is prorated
based on the consideration actually paid by the lender as well as any other interest or fees) such that the borrower is
only required to repay the amount funded and the Company is not required to repay any unfunded portion of this
note. The maturity date is one year from the effective date of each payment and is the date upon which the Principal
Sum of this Note, as well as any unpaid interest and other fees, shall be due and payable. The Conversion Price is the
lesser of $0.60 or 70% of the lowest closing prices during the 20 trading days immediately previous to the day the
conversion notice is delivered to the Company. (In the case that conversion shares are not deliverable by DWAC, the
principal amount of the note shall be increased by $10,000, and the conversion price shall be redefined to equal the
lesser of (a) $0.60 or (b) 50% of the lowest closing prices during the 20 trading days immediately previous to the day
the conversion notice is delivered to the Company). Unless otherwise agreed in writing by both parties, at no time
will the lender convert any amount of this note into common stock that would result in the lender owning more than
4.99% of the common stock outstanding. The initial $27,500 tranche and accrued interest thereon was converted into
63,462 shares of common stock during the fiscal year ending April 30, 2014.
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Borrowed $35,000, 5% convertible note due August 1, 2014. This note and accrued interest thereon was converted
into 103,659 shares of common stock during the fiscal year ending April 30, 2014.

Borrowed $13,900, 10% convertible note due June 1, 2014. The Conversion Price for this note is the lesser of $0.50 or
70% of the lowest closing prices during the 20 trading days immediately previous to the day the conversion notice is
delivered to the Company. $13,400 of the note was converted into 34,814 shares of common stock during the fiscal
year ending April 30, 2014.

Borrowed $30,000, 12% convertible note due June 1, 2014. The Conversion Price for this note is the lesser of $0.50 or
70% of the lowest closing prices during the 20 trading days immediately previous to the day the conversion notice is
delivered to the Company. This note was converted into 101,798 shares of common stock during the fiscal year
ending April 30, 2014.

Borrowed $60,000, 12% convertible note due March 20, 2015. The Conversion Price for this note is 65% of the
lowest closing prices during the 20 trading days immediately previous to the day the conversion notice is delivered to
the Company. (In the case that conversion shares are not deliverable by DWAC, the principal amount of the note shall
be increased by $15,000, and the conversion price shall be redefined to equal the lesser of (a) $0.005 or (b) 50% of the
lowest closing prices during the 20 trading days immediately previous to the day the conversion notice is delivered to
the Company). $35,000 of the note was converted into 57,692 shares of common stock during the fiscal year ending
April 30, 2014.

Borrowed $5,000, pursuant to a 5% convertible note due March 1, 2014 which note plus accrued interest was

converted into 14,297 shares of the Company’s common stock. Issued 44,000 shares of common stock to this note
holder upon conversion of $16,500 of accrued interest.
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Borrowed $50,000, 8% convertible note due November 30, 2013, convertible at the holder’s option at the lower of
$0.25 or the closing market price on the day of conversion. The note holder received 10,000 shares of common stock
as inducement for the note. $45,000 of this note plus accrued interest thereon was converted into 187,346 shares of the
Company’s common stock. $5,000 of this note was received in the fourth quarter. And, issued 146,223 shares of
common stock upon conversion of a $50,000. Non-interest bearing note.

Borrowed $53,263, 8% convertible note, convertible at $0.495 per share which amount has been added to an existing
note originally due April 30, 2013, but subsequently amended to such time as the law suit filed by the Company (see:
PART II, ITEM 1 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS) is fully adjudicated. Issued 146,392 shares of common stock to this note
holder upon the conversion of $99,849 of accrued interest

Borrowed $25,000, pursuant to a 12% convertible note due April 18, 2014. This note plus accrued interest thereon
was fully converted into 95,374 shares of the Company’s common stock. The shares were classified as to be issued at
April 30, 2014.

Issued 89,983 shares upon the conversion of $38,857 of principal and accrued interest of a 12% note. Borrowed
$25,000 at 12% due May 27, 2014 convertible at the holder’s option at $0.59 per share and borrowed $50,000 at 12%
due March 20, 2015 convertible at the holder’s option at $0.59 per share.

Borrowed $42,500, 8% note due January 11, 2015. The note is convertible at the note holder’s option at a variable
conversion prices such that during the period during which the notes are outstanding, with all notes convertible at 58%
multiplied by the average of the three lowest closing bid prices for the common stock during the ten trading day
period ending one trading day prior to the submission date of the conversion notice by the note holder to the
Company.

Borrowed $40,000, 6% note due April 3, 2015. The note is convertible at the note holder’s option at the lesser of $1.20
or a variable conversion of 65% multiplied by the lowest VWAP in the five trading day period ending one trading day

prior to the submission date of the conversion notice by the note holder to the Company.

Borrowed $44,770, 5% note due April 15, 2016. The note is convertible at the note holder’s option at the rate of 1.5
shares of common stock for each dollar converted

Issued 576,586 shares which were classified as to be issued at April 30, 2013.
Issued 926,682 shares, valued at $386,941 pursuant to consulting agreements.
Issued 158,766 shares of common stock, valued at $113,260 pursuant to terms of notes payable.

Sold 3,655,459 shares of common stock to thirty-five accredited investors for $1,298,997, of which 119,170 remained
to be issued at April 30, 2014.

Issued 190,000 shares of common stock in payment of $111,483 in accounts payable, of which 20,000 remain to be
issued at April 30, 2014.

Issued 1,333 shares pursuant to an employment agreement and 21,476 shares in lieu of salary to an officer of the
Company

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

"FORWARD-LOOKING" INFORMATION

This report on Form 10-K contains certain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which represent our expectations and beliefs, including, but not limited
to, statements concerning the Company's business and financial plans and prospects. The words "believe," "expect,"
"anticipate," "estimate," "project," and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements, which speak only as
of the date such statement was made. These statements by their nature involve substantial risks and uncertainties,
certain of which are beyond our control, and actual results may differ materially depending on a variety of important
factors.

nn

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the information set forth in the
audited financial statements for the years ended April 30, 2014 and April 30, 2013 and footnotes found in the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Discontinued Operations

As discussed in NOTE C to the consolidated financial statements, in August 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors
approved management’s recommendation to discontinue the Company’s consumer lease and loan lines of business and
the sale of all of the Company’s portfolio of RISCs, and a portion of its portfolio of leases. The sale was consummated
in that quarter. The assets and liabilities have been accounted for as discontinued operations in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets for all periods presented.

The operating results related to these lines of business have been included in discontinued operations in the Company’s
consolidated statements of loss for all periods presented. The following table presents summarized operating results
for those discontinued operations.

Fiscal Year Ended
April 30, April 30,
2014 2013
Revenues $ 122,373 $ 203,997
Net loss $ (280,441) $ (880,210)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended April 30, 2014, our revenues from continuing operations increased approximately 15%. We have
continued to incur significant expenses, and have sustained significant losses.

Revenues-Continuing Operations

Revenues totaled $476,022 in fiscal 2014 compared to revenues of $413,602 in fiscal 2013. Other income in fiscal
2014 was $77,190 compared with $72,978 in fiscal 2013. Revenues from continuing operations in both fiscal years
were from the sale of vehicle history reports, mobile apps and monthly mobile app service fees. Other income in both
fiscal years was comprised primarily of Municipal Lease Fee income and interest income from subscriptions
receivable.

Costs and Expenses-Continuing Operations

We incurred employee compensation and benefit costs of $889,933 for the year ended April 30, 2014 compared with
$521,879 in fiscal 2013. The increase is primarily related to reductions in allocation of executive salaries between
continuing and discontinued operations.

In connection with placement transactions, we expensed non-cash costs in the form of shares of common stock or
warrants of $69,296 and $240,521 for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In connection with
consulting services, we expensed non-cash costs in the form of shares of common stock or warrants of $361,794 and
$195,719 for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These amounts were charged to financing costs.
Additionally, during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2014, we expensed $11,208 as the value of employee stock and
option based compensation as compared to $88,339 in the prior fiscal year. During the year ended April 30, 2014, we
recorded a charge of $417,290 amortization of debt discounts for convertible notes to financing costs as compared to a
charge of $854,569 in fiscal 2013. Additionally, we recognized an increase of the derivative liability of warrants and
share conversion rights in the amount of $166,932 in fiscal 2014 as compared to a decrease of $66,041 in fiscal 2013.
At April 30, 2014 and 2013, accrued preferred dividends of $157,328 and $157,758, respectively, were charged to
retained earnings.
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We incurred legal and accounting fees of $259,260 for the year ended April 30, 2014, as compared to $98,835 for the
year ended April 30, 2013.

We incurred other operating expenses of $487,864 for the year ended April 30, 2014. Notable expenses in this
category are: general office expenses of $210,456; rent of $114,191; travel and entertainment of $37,981; utilities of
$23,956; advertising, marketing and website expenses of $84,779; and taxes of $16,501.

We incurred other operating expenses of $312,012 for the year ended April 30, 2013. Notable expenses in this
category are: general office expenses of $116,576; rent of $123,316; travel and entertainment of $13,920; utilities of
$24,795; advertising, website and marketing of $23,852; and taxes of $9,553.

Interest and financing costs for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2014 were $381,651 as compared to $335,828 for the

fiscal year ended April 30, 2013. Depreciation and amortization for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2014 was $4,572 as
compared to $6,953 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2013.
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Net Loss-Continuing Operations

Revenues increased $62,420 (15.09%) from $413,602 to $476,022, and cost of goods sold increased $9,098 (6.24%)
from $145,863 to $154, 961, resulting in a $53,321 (19.92%) increase in gross profit. General and administrative
expenses increased $547,751 (32.37%) to $2,240,154; Interest expense and financing costs increased $1,860 (1.0%)
to $337,688; non cash financing costs decreased $127,262 (52.9%) to $113,260; the amortization of debt discount
decreased $437,278 (51.17%); and the changes in the fair value of derivative liabilities increased $232,973 (352.77%)
from a $66,041 gain to a $166,932 loss. Our net loss from continuing operations for the year ended April 30, 2014
increased $158,129 (5.81%) to $2,881,646 from a loss of $2,723,518 for the year ended April 30, 2013. The increase
in net loss from operations was primarily due to the $547,751 (32.37%) increase in general and administrative
expenses partially off-set by the net $375,531(27.51%) decline in non-cash financing and derivative charges.

Our net loss attributable to common stockholders for the year ended April 30, 2014 decreased $460,875 (12.37%) to
$3,265,648 from a loss of $3,726,523 for the year ended April 30, 2013. This decrease in net loss attributable to
common stockholders for the year ended April 30, 2014 was primarily due to the $599,469 (68.14%) decrease in net
loss from discontinued operations to $280,441 from $880,210 and the net loss from continuing operations.

Our net loss per common share (basic and diluted) attributable to common stockholders was $0.19 for the year ended
April 30, 2014 and $0.33 for the year ended April 30, 2013.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of April 30, 2014, we had a deficit net worth of $3,932,164. We generated a deficit in cash flow from operations of
$1,876,605 for the year ended April 30, 2014. This deficit is primarily attributable to net loss attributed to
shareholders $3,265,647 adjusted for, dividends of $157,328; non-controlling interest in the net loss of $53,767;
equity based compensation of $398,149; stock based financing costs of $113,260; change in fair value of derivative
liabilities of $166,932; amortization of debt discount of $417,291; and to changes in the balances of current assets,
consisting primarily of an increase in accounts receivable of $28,496, and current liabilities, consisting primarily of an
increase in accounts payable of $217,692. We met our cash requirements during the period through net proceeds from
the issuances of convertible and other notes of $1,031, 433, and we sold common and preferred stock for net proceeds
of $1,298,977, we repaid notes in the amount of $374,500 and repaid a director $7,407. Cash flows from discontinued
operations included cash used by operating activities of $39,655.

While we have raised capital to meet our working capital and financing needs in the past, additional financing is
required in order to meet our current and projected cash flow deficits from operations and development.

We continue seeking additional financing which may be in the form of senior debt, subordinated debt or equity. Other
than described above, we currently have no commitments for financing. There is no guarantee that we will be
successful in raising the funds required.

We estimate that we will need approximately $1,500,000 in addition to our normal operating cash flow to conduct
operations during the next twelve months. Based on the above, on capital received from equity financing to date, and
certain indications of interest to purchase our equity, we believe that we have a reasonable chance to raise sufficient
capital resources to meet projected cash flow deficits through the next twelve months. There can be no assurance that
additional private or public financing, including debt or equity financing, will be available as needed, or, if available,
on terms favorable to us. Any additional equity financing may be dilutive to stockholders and such additional equity
securities may have rights, preferences or privileges that are senior to those of our existing common or preferred stock.
Furthermore, debt financing, if available, will require payment of interest and may involve restrictive covenants that
could impose limitations on our operating flexibility. However, if we are not successful in generating sufficient
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liquidity from operations or in raising sufficient capital resources, on terms acceptable to us, this could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, liquidity and financial condition, and we will have to adjust our
planned operations and development on a more limited scale.

The effect of inflation on our revenue and operating results was not significant. Our operations are located in North
America and there are no seasonal aspects that would have a material effect on our financial condition or results of
operations.

AUDITOR'S OPINION EXPRESSES DOUBT ABOUT THE COMPANY'S ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS A
"GOING CONCERN"

The independent auditors report on our April 30, 2014 and 2013 consolidated financial statements included in this
Annual Report states that our historical losses and the lack of revenues raise substantial doubts about our ability to
continue as a going concern, due to the losses incurred and lack of significant operations. If we are unable to develop
our business, we may have to discontinue operations or cease to exist, which would be detrimental to the value of the
Company's common stock. We can make no assurances that our business operations will develop and provide us with
significant cash to continue operations.
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PLAN OF OPERATIONS
Addressing the Going Concern Issues

In order to improve our liquidity, our management is actively pursuing additional equity financing through discussions
with investment bankers and private investors. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in our efforts to
secure additional equity financing.

We continue to experience net operating losses. Our ability to continue as a going concern is subject to our ability to
develop profitable operations. We are devoting substantially all of our efforts to developing our business and raising
capital. Our net operating losses increase the difficulty in meeting such goals and there can be no assurances that such
methods will prove successful.

The primary issues management will focus on in the immediate future to address this matter include:
seeking institutional investors for equity investments in our company; and

- initiating negotiations to secure short term financing through promissory notes or other debt instruments on an as
needed basis.

To address these issues, we are negotiating the potential sale of securities with investment banking companies to assist
us in raising capital.

Product Research and Development
We do not anticipate incurring significant research and development expenditures during the next twelve months.
Acquisition or Disposition of Plant and Equipment

We do not anticipate the acquisition or sale of any significant property, plant or equipment during the next twelve
months.

Number of Employees

From our inception through the period ended April 30, 2014, we have relied on the services of outside consultants for
services and currently have twelve full-time employees. In order for us to attract and retain quality personnel, we
anticipate we will have to offer competitive salaries to future employees. If we fully implement our business plan, we
anticipate our employment base may increase by at least 100% during the next twelve months. As we continue to
expand, we will incur additional cost for personnel. This projected increase in personnel is dependent upon our
generating revenues and obtaining sources of financing. There is no guarantee that we will be successful in raising the
funds required or generating revenues sufficient to fund the projected increase in the number of employees.

Inflation

The impact of inflation on our costs and the ability to pass on cost increases to our customers over time is dependent
upon market conditions. We are not aware of any inflationary pressures that have had any significant impact on our
operations over the past year, and we do not anticipate that inflationary factors will have a significant impact on future
operations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect our reported assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses,
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We base our estimates and judgments on historical experience
and on various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Future events, however, may
differ markedly from our current expectations and assumptions. While there are a number of significant accounting
policies affecting our financial statements, we believe the following critical accounting policy involves the most
complex, difficult and subjective estimates and judgments.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenues from history report and mobile app products are recognized on a cash basis.
Revenues from RISCs and leases

The RISCs are secured by liens on the titles to the vehicles. The RISCs are accounted for as loans. Upon purchase,
the RISCs appear on our balance sheet as RISC loans receivable current and long term. When the RISC is entered into
our accounting system, based on the customer's APR (interest rate), an amortization schedule for the loan on a simple
interest basis is created. Interest is computed by taking the principal balance times the APR rate then divided by 365
days to get your daily interest amount. The daily interest amount is multiplied by the number of days from the last
payment to get the interest income portion of the payment being applied. The balance of the payment goes to reducing
the loan principal balance.

Our leases are accounted for as either operating leases or direct financing leases. At the inception of operating leases,
no lease revenue is recognized and the leased motorcycles, together with the initial direct costs of originating the
lease, which are capitalized, appear on the balance sheet as "motorcycles under operating leases-net". The capitalized
cost of each motorcycle is depreciated over the lease term, on a straight-line basis, down to the original estimate of the
projected value of the motorcycle at the end of the scheduled lease term (the "Residual"). Monthly lease payments are
recognized as rental income. An acquisition fee classified as fee income on the financial statements is received and
recognized in income at the inception of the lease. Direct financing leases are recorded at the gross amount of the
lease receivable, and unearned income at lease inception is amortized over the lease term.

We realize gains and losses as the result of the termination of leases, both at and prior to their scheduled termination,
and the disposition of the related motorcycle. The disposal of motorcycles, which reach scheduled termination of a
lease, results in a gain or loss equal to the difference between proceeds received from the disposition of the motorcycle
and its net book value. Net book value represents the residual value at scheduled lease termination. Lease terminations
that occur prior to scheduled maturity as a result of the lessee's voluntary request to purchase the vehicle have resulted
in net gains, equal to the excess of the price received over the motorcycle's net book value.

Early lease terminations also occur because of (i) a default by the lessee, (ii) the physical loss of the motorcycle, or
(iii) the exercise of the lessee's early termination. In those instances, we receive the proceeds from either the resale or
release of the repossessed motorcycle, or the payment by the lessee's insurer. We record a gain or loss for the
difference between the proceeds received and the net book value of the motorcycle. We charge fees to manufacturers
and other customers related to creating a private label version of our financing program including web access,
processing credit applications, consumer contracts and other related documents and processes. Fees received are
amortized and booked as income over the length of the contract.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standard Codification Topic 718 (“ASC
718-10"), which records compensation expense on a straight-line basis, generally over the explicit service period of
three to five years.

ASC 718-10 requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using
an option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as
expense over the requisite service periods in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations. The Company is
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model as its method of valuation for share-based awards. The Company’s
determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model is
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affected by the Company’s stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective
variables. These variables include, but are not limited to the Company’s expected stock price volatility over the term
of the awards, and certain other market variables such as the risk free interest rate.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

For information regarding recent accounting pronouncements and their effect on the Company, see “Recent Accounting
Pronouncements” in Note A of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained herein.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not maintain off-balance sheet arrangements nor do we participate in non-exchange traded contracts requiring
fair value accounting treatment.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable.

22

42



Edgar Filing: SPARTA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 30. 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Losses for the years ended April 30, 2014
and 2013

Consolidated Statement of Deficit for the two years ended April 30.
2014

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended April 30.
2014 and 2013

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

23

Page
24
25
26
27
28

29 - 46

43



Edgar Filing: SPARTA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
Sparta Commercial Services, Inc.
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sparta Commercial Services, Inc. and subsidiary,
as of April 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of losses, deficit and cash flows for each of the
two years in the period ended April 30, 2014. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based
upon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States of America). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Sparta Commercial Services, Inc. at April 30, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended April 30, 2014, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the company will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in the Note N to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the company has
suffered recurring losses from operations that raises substantial doubt about the company's ability to continue as a
going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note N. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s’ RBSMLLP
New York, New York

August 13,2014
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SPARTA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of
$199,367 and $194,795, respectively (NOTE B)

Goodwill

Other assets

Deposits

Total assets from continuing operations

ASSETS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (NOTE C)
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND DEFICIT
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Notes payable net of beneficial conversion feature of $296,384 and $105,029,
respectively (NOTE D)

Loans payable-related parties (NOTE E)

Derivative liabilities

Total liabilities from continuing operations

LIABILITIES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (NOTE C)

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Deficit:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized of which 35,850
shares have been designated as Series A convertible preferred stock, with a stated
value of $100 per share, 125 and 125 shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Preferred stock B, 1,000 shares have been designated as Series B redeemable
preferred stock, $0.001 par value, with a liquidation and redemption value of
$10,000 per share, 157 and 157 shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Preferred stock C, 200,000 shares have been designated as Series C redeemable,
convertible preferred, $0.001 par value, with a liquidation and redemption value of
$10 per share, 0 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 750,000,000 shares authorized, 20,987,353 and
14,131,242 shares issued and outstanding, respectively

Common stock to be issued, 283,777 and 625,340, respectively

Preferred stock B to be issued, 72.48 and 56.80 shares, respectively

Additional paid-in-capital

Form 10-K

As of
April 30,

April 30,
2014

$ 70,456
182,343

9,974

10,000

60,992

40,568
374,333
90,024

$ 464,357

$ 1,259,368

2,019,879
385,853
601,000

4,266,100
130,421

4,396,521

12,500

1,570

20,987

284

72
41,738,613

$

$

$

2013

38,213
153,847

14,546
10,000
57,907
40,568
315,081
109,669
424,750

1,333,187

2,004,475
393,260
378,802

4,109,724
189,720

4,299,444

12,500

1,570

14,131

625

57
38,483,198
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Subscriptions receivable (2,118,309)
Accumulated deficit (44,257,3006)
Total deficiency in stockholders' equity (4,601,588)
Noncontrolling interest 669,424
Total Deficit (3,932,164)
Total Liabilities and Deficit $ 464,357 $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(2,118,309)
(40,991,658)
(4,597,885)
723,191
(3,874,694)
424,750
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SPARTA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF LOSSES

Revenue

Information technology
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

Operating expenses:

General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Other (income) expense:

Other income

Interest expense and financing cost, net
Non-cash financing costs

Amortization of debt discount

(Gain) loss in changes in fair value of derivative liability
Total other (income) expense

Net loss from continuing operations

Net loss from discontinued operations

Net Loss

Net loss attributed to Noncontrolling interest

Preferred dividend

Net loss attributed to common stockholders

Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations

Basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share attributed to
common stockholders

Weighted average shares outstanding

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended
April 30,
2014 2013
$ 476,022 $ 413,602
154,961 145,863
321,061 267,739
2,240,154 1,692,403
4,572 6,953
2,244,726 1,699,356
(1,923,665) (1,431,617)
(77,190) (72,978)
337,688 335,828
113,260 240,522
417,291 854,569
166,932 (66,041)
957,981 1,291,900

$ (2,881,646)
$ (280,441)
$  (3,162,087)
53,767
(157,328)

$  (3,265,648)

$ (0.16)

$ (0.02)

$ (0.19)
17,637,942

$ (2,723,517)
$  (880,210)
$  (3,603,727)
34,962
(157,758)

$  (3,726,523)

$ (0.24)

$ (0.08)

$ (0.33)
11,139,632
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SPARTA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF DEFICIT
FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Series
Series A Series B B Common Stock Addi
Shares
Preferred Preferred to be
Stock Stock issued Common Stock to be issued Subscriptions  Pai
Shares Amount Shares AmountShavksnount Shares Amount  Shares Amount Receivable Cay
Balance April
30,2012 125 $12,500 157 $1,570 42 $- 8,668,123 $8,668 1,125,099 $1,125 $(2,118,309) $35,2(
Reverse split
correction 5,000 5 (1,000 ) 1 ) (235
Preferred
dividend to be
issued 15 156,
Derivative
liability
reclassification 852,¢
Sale of common
stock 2,420,560 2,420 22,460 22 864

Shares issued

for financing

cost 341,190 342 8,00 ) 8 ) 234 ¢
Shares issued for

conversion of notes

and interest 2,036,950 2,037 (504,230 ) (504 ) 597 ,(
Stock

compensation 650,520 650 390,
Purchase of

assets for stock 8,899 9 889 ) O )

Employee

options expense 176,¢
Sale of

subsidiary's

preferred stock

Net loss

Balance April

30, 2013 125 $12,500 157 $1,570 57 $- 14,131,242 $14,131 625,340 $625  $(2,118,309) $38,4¢
Correcting (40 ) - (85,826 ) (87 ) 12
Preferred

dividend to be

issued 15 - - - - - 156,
Derivative

liability

reclassification 518,
Sale of common

stock 3,883,899 3,884 (72,201 ) (72 ) 1,29
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Shares issued
for financing

cost 158,766 158 16,677 17 113,(
Shares issued for conversion of notes,

interest and accounts payable 1,886,804 1,887 (205,713 ) (205 ) T75,(
Stock

compensation 926,682 927 5,500 6 386,(
Employee

options expense 11,2(
Net loss

Balance April

30, 2014 125 $12,500 157 $1,570 72 $- 20,987,353 $20,987 283,777 $284  $(2,118,309) $41,7-

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SPARTA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:

Adjustments

Dividend on preferred stock

Loss allocable to non-controlling interest
Depreciation and amortization

Change in fair value of derivative liabilities
Amortization of debt discount

Shares issued for finance cost

Shares issued upon conversion of interest

Equity based compensation

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net cash provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from sale of subsidiary stock

Net proceeds from sale of common stock

Net proceeds from convertible notes

Net payments on convertible notes

Net proceeds from other notes

Net payment on other notes

Net payment on related notes

Net cash provided by financing activities

Cash flows from discontinued operations:

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities of discontinued operations
Cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities of discontinued operations
Net Cash flow from discontinued operation

Net Increase in cash

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents , end of period

FY ENDED
APRIL 30,

2014

$ (3,265,648) $

(75)
156,569
(583,767)

4,572
166,932
417,291
113,260

398,149

(28,496)
(3,084)

217,692
(1,876,605)

1,298,977
966,433
(309,500)
65,000
(65,000)
(7,407)
1,948,503

(39,655)

(39,655)
32,243

38,213
$ 70,456 $

2013

(3,726,523)

(190)
157,758
(34,962)

6,953
(66,041)
854,569
235,252

4,448
568,116

(31,376)

277,735
(1,754,262)

55,000
866,775
698,910
(27,125)

6,500

1,600,061

86,528
384,474
(297,726)
173,276

19,075

19,138
38,213
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Cash paid for:
Interest $ 11,438 $
Income taxes $ 5,600 $

Non cash investing and financing activities ( see: Note L)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SPARTA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements follows.

Business and Basis of Presentation

Since May 2010, the Company has concentrated its efforts on developing and marketing vehicle history reports, over
the internet, and mobile apps for vehicle dealers and other market segments. Historically, the Company had been in
the business as an originator and indirect lender for consumer retail installment loans and consumer lease financing for
the purchase or lease of new and used motorcycles. These consumer financing products were discontinued during the
fiscal year ending April 30, 2013 (see Discontinued Operations). The Company continues to offer a leasing program,
on a pass through basis, for municipalities.

Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Discontinued Operations

As discussed in NOTE C, in the second quarter of fiscal 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors approved
management’s recommendation to discontinue the Company’s consumer lease and loan lines of business and the sale of
all of the Company’s portfolio of RISCs, and a portion of its portfolio of leases. The sale was consummated in that
quarter. The assets and liabilities have been accounted for as discontinued operations in the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets for all periods presented. The operating results related to these lines of business have been included in
discontinued operations in the Company’s consolidated statements of loss for all periods presented

Revenue Recognition
Revenues from history report and mobile app products are recognized on a cash basis.
Revenues from RISCs and leases:

The RISCs are secured by liens on the titles to the vehicles. The RISCs are accounted for as loans. Upon purchase,
the RISCs appear on our balance sheet as RISC loans receivable current and long term. When the RISC is entered into
our accounting system, based on the customer's APR (interest rate), an amortization schedule for the loan on a simple
interest basis is created. Interest is computed by taking the principal balance times the APR rate then divided by 365
days to get your daily interest amount. The daily interest amount is multiplied by the number of days from the last
payment to get the interest income portion of the payment being applied. The balance of the payment goes to reducing
the loan principal balance.

Our leases are accounted for as either operating leases or direct financing leases. At the inception of operating leases,
no lease revenue is recognized and the leased motorcycles, together with the initial direct costs of originating the
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lease, which are capitalized, appear on the balance sheet as "motorcycles under operating leases-net". The capitalized
cost of each motorcycle is depreciated over the lease term, on a straight-line basis, down to the original estimate of the
projected value of the motorcycle at the end of the scheduled lease term (the "Residual"). Monthly lease payments are
recognized as rental income. An acquisition fee classified as fee income on the financial statements is received and
recognized in income at the inception of the lease. Direct financing leases are recorded at the gross amount of the
lease receivable, and unearned income at lease inception is amortized over the lease term.

We realize gains and losses as the result of the termination of leases, both at and prior to their scheduled termination,
and the disposition of the related motorcycle. The disposal of motorcycles, which reach scheduled termination of a
lease, results in a gain or loss equal to the difference between proceeds received from the disposition of the motorcycle
and its net book value. Net book value represents the residual value at scheduled lease termination. Lease terminations
that occur prior to scheduled maturity as a result of the lessee's voluntary request to purchase the vehicle have resulted
in net gains, equal to the excess of the price received over the motorcycle's net book value.

29
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SPARTA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2014 AND 2013

Early lease terminations also occur because of (i) a default by the lessee, (ii) the physical loss of the motorcycle, or
(iii) the exercise of the lessee's early termination. In those instances, we receive the proceeds from either the resale or
release of the repossessed motorcycle, or the payment by the lessee's insurer. We record a gain or loss for the
difference between the proceeds received and the net book value of the motorcycle. We charge fees to manufacturers
and other customers related to creating a private label version of our financing program including web access,
processing credit applications, consumer contracts and other related documents and processes. Fees received are
amortized and booked as income over the length of the contract.

Website Development Costs

The Company recognizes website development costs in accordance with ASC 350-50, "Accounting for Website
Development Costs." As such, the Company expenses all costs incurred that relate to the planning and post
implementation phases of development of its website. Direct costs incurred in the development phase are capitalized
and recognized over the estimated useful life. Costs associated with repair or maintenance for the website are
included in cost of net revenues in the current period expenses.

Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the accompanying financial statements, all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three
months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided using the asset and liability method for financial reporting purposes in accordance
with the provisions of ASC 740-10, "Accounting for Income Taxes" (“ASC 740-10"). Under this method, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying values for financial reporting purposes and for operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be removed or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in the statements of operations in the period that includes the enactment date.

ASC 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. ASC 740also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, treatment of interest and penalties, and disclosure of such positions. As a result of
implementing ASC 740, there has been no adjustment to the Company’s consolidated financial statements and the
adoption of ASC 740 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ending April 30, 2014.

Fair Value Measurements
The Company adopted ASC 820,” Fair Value Measurements” (“ASC 820”), establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority

to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets the lowest priority to unobservable inputs to fair value measurements of
certain assets and Liabilities. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 are described below:
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- Level 1 — Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets. Level 1 assets and

liabilities include debt and equity securities and derivative contracts that are traded in an
active exchange market, as well as certain securities that are highly liquid and are actively
traded in over-the-counter markets.

- Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical

or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model derived valuations in which
all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets.

- Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are

significant to the fair value measurements. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial
instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies, or similar techniques based on significant unobservable inputs, as well as
management judgments or estimates that are significant to valuation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2014 AND 2013

This hierarchy requires the Company to use observable market data, when available, and to minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when determining fair value. For some products or in certain market conditions, observable
inputs may not always be available.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance ASC 360-10, “Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“ASC 360-10"), long-lived assets, such as
property, equipment, motorcycles and other vehicles and purchased intangible assets subject to amortization are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparing the carrying amount

of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount

of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows or quoted market prices in active markets if available, an

impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the
asset.

Segment Information

The Company adopted ASC 280-10 “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“ASC
280-107). ASC 280-10 establishes standards for reporting information regarding operating segments in annual
financial statements and requires selected information for those segments to be presented in consolidated financial
reports issued to stockholders. ASC 280-10 also establishes standards for related disclosures about products and
services and geographic areas. Operating segments are identified as components of an enterprise about which separate
discrete financial information is available for evaluation by the chief operating decision maker, or decision making
group, in making decisions how to allocate resources and assess performance. The information disclosed herein,
materially represents all of the financial information related to the Company's principal operating segments.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors approved management’s recommendation to
discontinue the Company’s consumer lease and loan lines of business and the sale of all of the Company’s portfolio of
RISCs and a portion of its portfolio of leases. The sale was consummated in that quarter. The assets and liabilities
have been accounted for as discontinued operations in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets for all periods
presented. The operating results related to these lines of business have been included in discontinued operations in the
Company’s consolidated statements of loss for all periods presented. As these lines of business were discontinued
during the fiscal year ending April 30, 2013, the Company has discontinued segment reporting.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company adopted ASC 718-10 “Accounting for Stock Compensation” (“ASC 718-10) which records compensation
expense on a straight-line basis, generally over the explicit service period of three to five years.

ASC 718-10 requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using
an option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as
expense over the requisite service periods in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations. The Company is
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model as its method of valuation for share-based awards. The Company’s
determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model is
affected by the Company’s stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective
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variables. These variables include, but are not limited to the Company’s expected stock price volatility over the term
of the awards, and certain other market variables such as the risk free interest rate.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2014 AND 2013

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Minor additions and renewals are expensed in the year incurred. Major
additions and renewals are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives of major depreciable assets are as
follows:

Leasehold 3 years
improvements
Furniture and 7 years
fixtures

Website costs 3 years
Computer 5 years
Equipment

Advertising Costs

The Company follows a policy of charging the costs of advertising to expenses incurred. During the years ended April
30, 2014 and 2013, the Company’s continuing operations incurred advertising costs of $39,519 and $4,196,
respectively.

Net Loss Per Share

The Company uses ASC 260-10, “Earnings Per Share” for calculating the basic and diluted loss per share. The
Company computes basic loss per share by dividing net loss and net loss attributable to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Common equivalent shares are excluded from the
computation of net loss per share if their effect is anti-dilutive.

Per share basic and diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders amounted to $0.19 and $0.33 for the years
ended April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. At April 30, 2014 and 2013, 6,076,398 (including 283,777 shares to be
issued included on the balance sheet) and 6,035,657 (including 625,340 shares to be issued included on the balance
sheet) potential shares, respectively, were excluded from the shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share as
their inclusion would reduce net loss per share.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform to prior periods' data to the current presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on reported losses.

Derivative Liabilities
The Company assessed the classification of its derivative financial instruments as of December 31, 2013, which

consist of convertible instruments and rights to shares of the Company’s common stock, and determined that such
derivatives meet the criteria for liability classification under ASC 815.
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ASC 815 generally provides three criteria that, if met, require companies to bifurcate conversion options from their
host instruments and account for them as free standing derivative financial instruments. These three criteria include
circumstances in which (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative instrument are not
clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, (b) the hybrid instrument that
embodies both the embedded derivative instrument and the host contract is not re-measured at fair value under
otherwise applicable generally accepted accounting principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they
occur and (c) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be considered a
derivative instrument subject to the requirements of ASC 815. ASC 815 also provides an exception to this rule when
the host instrument is deemed to be conventional, as described.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2014 AND 2013

Convertible Instruments

The Company evaluates and accounts for conversion options embedded in its convertible instruments in accordance
with professional standards for “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.

Professional standards generally provides three criteria that, if met, require companies to bifurcate conversion options
from their host instruments and account for them as free standing derivative financial instruments. These three criteria
include circumstances in which (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative instrument are
not clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, (b) the hybrid instrument
that embodies both the embedded derivative instrument and the host contract is not re-measured at fair value under
otherwise applicable generally accepted accounting principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they
occur and (c) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be considered a
derivative instrument. Professional standards also provide an exception to this rule when the host instrument is
deemed to be conventional as defined under professional standards as ‘“The Meaning of “Conventional Convertible Debt
Instrument”.

The Company accounts for convertible instruments (when it has determined that the embedded conversion options
should not be bifurcated from their host instruments) in accordance with professional standards when “Accounting for
Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features,” as those professional standards pertain to “Certain
Convertible Instruments.” Accordingly, the Company records, when necessary, discounts to convertible notes for the
intrinsic value of conversion options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences between the fair value
of the underlying common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction and the effective conversion price
embedded in the note. Debt discounts under these arrangements are amortized over the term of the related debt to their
earliest date of redemption. The Company also records when necessary deemed dividends for the intrinsic value of
conversion options embedded in preferred shares based upon the differences between the fair value of the underlying
common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction and the effective conversion price embedded in the
note.

ASC 815-40 provides that, among other things, generally, if an event is not within the entity’s control could or require
net cash settlement, then the contract shall be classified as an asset or a liability.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There are various updates recently issued, most of which represented technical corrections to the accounting literature
or applications to specific industries and are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE B - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Major classes of property and equipment at April 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of the followings:

2014 2013
Computer equipment, software and
furniture $ 209,341 $ 209,341
Less: accumulated depreciation (199,367) (194,795)
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Net property and equipment $ 9974 $ 14,546

Depreciation expense related to property and equipment was $4,572 and $6,953 for the years ended April 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively.
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NOTE C - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In the second quarter of fiscal 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors approved management’s recommendation to
discontinue the Company’s consumer lease and loan lines of business and the sale of all of the Company’s portfolio of
RISCs and a portion of its portfolio of leases. The sale was consummated in that quarter. The assets and liabilities
have been accounted for as discontinued operations in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets for all periods
presented. The operating results related to these lines of business have been included in discontinued operations in the
Company’s consolidated statements of loss for all periods presented. The following table presents summarized
operating results for those discontinued operations.

Fiscal Year Ended
April 30, April 30,
2014 2013
Revenues $ 122,373 $ 203,997
Net loss $ (280,441) $ (880,210)

As the Company sold all of its portfolio of RISCs, and a portion of its portfolio of leases with the remaining leases in
final run-off mode, therefore no portfolio performance measures were calculated for the year ending April 30, 2014.

ASSETS INCLUDED IN DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
MOTORCYCLES AND OTHER VEHICLES UNDER OPERATING LEASES

Motorcycles and other vehicles under operating leases at April 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of the following:

2014 2013
Motorcycles and other vehicles $ 60,686 $ 152,157
Less: accumulated depreciation (5,016) (36,687)
Motorcycles and other vehicles, net of
accumulated depreciation 55,670 115,470
Less: estimated reserve for residual
values (4,252) (8,880)
Motorcycles and other vehicles under
operating leases, net $ 51,418 $ 106,590

At April 30, 2014, motorcycles and other vehicles are being depreciated to their estimated residual values over the
lives of their lease contracts. Depreciation expense for vehicles for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013 was
$29,411 and $53,191, respectively. All of the assets are pledged as collateral for the note described in SECURED
NOTES PAYABLE in this Note These remaining leases are in a run-off mode.

The following is a schedule by years of minimum future rentals (excluding residual values of $35,795) on
non-cancelable operating leases as of April 30, 2014:

63



Edgar Filing: SPARTA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC. - Form 10-K

Year ending April

30,

2015 $ 51,418
2016 -
Total $ 51,418

RETAIL (RISC) LOAN RECEIVABLES

All of the Company’s RISC loan receivables were sold in August 2013. As of April 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company
had RISC Loans receivables of $37,919 (representing refinancing of two loans which had previously been sold) and
zero, respectively; Interest receivable of $2,180 and zero, respectively; and deficiency receivables of $0 and $6,156,
respectively. At April 30, 2014 and 2013, the reserve for doubtful RISC loan receivables was $1,124 and $3,078,
respectively.

As the Company sold all of its portfolio of RISCs, and a portion of its portfolio of leases with the remaining leases in

final run-off mode, therefore no portfolio performance measures were calculated for the year endings April 30, 2013
and 2014.
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LIABILITIES INCLUDED IN DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

SECURED NOTES PAYABLE
2014 2013
Secured, subordinated individual lender
(a) $ 117,508 $ 181,258
Secured, subordinated individual lender
(b) 12,912 14,337
Total $ 130,420 $ 195,595
(@ The Company had financed certain of its leases and RIS
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